
May 3, 2022

NOTICE: Public meetings will be held in-person and also livestreamed for viewing 

only, as possible.  To view meetings remotely, please use the Zoom information listed 

below.

Call To Order

Courthouse Large Conference Room

Pledge Of Allegiance

Approval Of Agenda

Approval Of Minutes – 04/27/22

04-27-22 MINUTES.PDF

Approval Of Claims For Payment – 05/04/22

VENDOR PUBLICATION REPORT 5.4.2022.PDF

Consideration Of CICS May Mental Health Month Proclamation

MENTAL HEALTH MONTH PROCLAMATION.PDF

Consideration Of Heart Of Iowa Utility Permit UT-22-007-Installing Phone Service

HEART OF IOWA UTILITY PERMIT UT-22-007.PDF

Consideration Of Motion Approving Petition To Intervene In HLP-2021-001 (Summit CO2 
Pipeline)

HARDIN PETITION TO INTERVENE WITH ATTACHMENTS.PDF

Opioid Litigation/Settlement Update

Consideration Of County Mileage Rate Reimbursement

Change Of Status-Secondary Roads

CHANGE OF STATUS-SECONDARY ROADS.PDF

Auditor ’s Monthly Report-April

AUDITOR MONTHLY REPORT-APRIL.PDF

Recorder ’s Monthly Report-April

RECORDER MONTHLY REPORT-APRIL.PDF

Other Business

Adjournment/Recess

Drainage

Courthouse Large Conference Room

1. 9:00 A.M.

2.

3.

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

6.

Documents:

7.

Documents:

8.

Documents:

9.

10.

11.

Documents:

12.

Documents:

13.

Documents:

14.

15.

16. 9:30 A.M.



May 3, 2022

NOTICE: Public meetings will be held in-person and also livestreamed for viewing 

only, as possible.  To view meetings remotely, please use the Zoom information listed 

below.

Call To Order

Courthouse Large Conference Room

Pledge Of Allegiance

Approval Of Agenda

Approval Of Minutes – 04/27/22

04-27-22 MINUTES.PDF

Approval Of Claims For Payment – 05/04/22

VENDOR PUBLICATION REPORT 5.4.2022.PDF

Consideration Of CICS May Mental Health Month Proclamation

MENTAL HEALTH MONTH PROCLAMATION.PDF

Consideration Of Heart Of Iowa Utility Permit UT-22-007-Installing Phone Service

HEART OF IOWA UTILITY PERMIT UT-22-007.PDF

Consideration Of Motion Approving Petition To Intervene In HLP-2021-001 (Summit CO2 
Pipeline)

HARDIN PETITION TO INTERVENE WITH ATTACHMENTS.PDF

Opioid Litigation/Settlement Update

Consideration Of County Mileage Rate Reimbursement

Change Of Status-Secondary Roads

CHANGE OF STATUS-SECONDARY ROADS.PDF

Auditor ’s Monthly Report-April

AUDITOR MONTHLY REPORT-APRIL.PDF

Recorder ’s Monthly Report-April

RECORDER MONTHLY REPORT-APRIL.PDF

Other Business

Adjournment/Recess

Drainage

Courthouse Large Conference Room

1. 9:00 A.M.

2.

3.

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

6.

Documents:

7.

Documents:

8.

Documents:

9.

10.

11.

Documents:

12.

Documents:

13.

Documents:

14.

15.

16. 9:30 A.M.

https://www.hardincountyia.gov/89a73c10-702b-4d85-8208-1a29cd9770e2


HARDIN COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
MINUTES – APRIL 27, 2022
WEDNESDAY – 9:00 A.M.

COURTHOUSE LARGE CONFERENCE ROOM

Board Chair BJ Hoffman called the meeting to order. Supervisors Lance Granzow and Renee 
McClellan were in attendance. Also attending were Thomas Craighton, Lori Kadner, Machel 
Eichmeier, Taylor Roll, Darrell Meyer, Dave McDaniel, Michael Pearce, Jolene Pieters, Mark 
Buschkamp, Ryan Keller, and Matt Rezab. Attending via Zoom: Cheryl Lawrence, Rocky 
Reents, City of Eldora, Megan Harrell, Elaine Loring, Curt Groen, Lisa Lawler, Donna Juber, 
Pauline Lloyd, and Julie Duhn.

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve the agenda. Motion carried.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve the minutes from 04/20/22. Motion carried.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve the claims for payment for 04/27/22. Motion 
carried.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to adopt the Resolution Allocating American Rescue Plan
Act Funds. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” Granzow, McClellan, Hoffman. “Nays” none. Absent: None.
Motion carried. Resolution No. 2022-17 is hereby adopted as follows:

RESOLUTION NO.  2022-17

RESOLUTION ALLOCATING AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT FUNDS

WHEREAS, in March 2021, the federal government established the American Rescue Plan Act
of 2021 (ARPA) which included the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds
(SLFRF) to provide state, local and Tribal governments with the resources needed to respond to
the pandemic and its economic effects; and

WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of the Treasury issued an Interim Final Rule implementing
the SLFRF program on May 10, 2021, which included replacing lost revenue to County
governments, and

WHEREAS, on January 6, 2022, the Treasury issued final rules for the SLFRF program,
including authorization for counties to allocate up to $10,000,000 of their total SLFRF allocation
as lost revenue to spend on government services.  



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Hardin County Board of Supervisors
approves allocating its total SLFRF allocation in the expected amount of $3,272,138 as lost
revenue to spend on government services.

HEREBY RESOLVED by the Hardin County Board of Supervisors this 27th day of April,
2022.

/s/ BJ Hoffman            /s/ Lance Granzow
BJ Hoffman, Chair Lance Granzow, Vice Chair

/s/ Renee McClellan            
Renee McClellan
        

/s/ Jolene Pieters
Attest:  Jolene Pieters, Auditor

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve a Class C Liquor License for Radcliffe 
Friendly Fairways Golf Course, Inc. Motion carried.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve a Class A Liquor License for Iowa Falls Lodge
Order of Moose Lodge #1331. Motion carried.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to accept the mowing bid from Kael Carr. Granzow 
discussed the mowing bids submitted and stated that the flat fee charged for the mowing season 
is preferred. Motion carried.

McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve the 28E Agreement between Franklin County 
and Hardin County Iowa for the Central Iowa Community Services (CICS) to provide human 
resources services. Franklin County will act as “Single Employer of Record” for all CICS staff 
performing duties of the Region. Hardin County has a shared employee between the County and 
CICS. BJ stated that the services in Hardin County will not change with this agreement. Roll Call
Vote: “Ayes” Granzow, McClellan, Hoffman. “Nays” none. Absent: None. Motion carried.

Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to approve the change of status in the Sheriff’s 
Department for the resignation of Jacob Chicoine, part-time jailer. Motion carried.

Mark Buschkamp, representing IFADC, updated the Board on various projects that they have 
been working on in the past month. 

In other business, Machel wanted to remind everyone to pay their property taxes and the 
Treasurer’s office will be sending out delinquent notices May 2, 2022.



McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried.

Meeting adjourned at 9:17 a.m.



5/2/2022 9:11:40 AM Page 1 of 2

Vendor Publication Report
Hardin County Payment Date Range: 05/04/2022 - 05/04/2022

Vendor Name Payable Description Total PaymentsVendor Number
Ackley Public Library Library Allocations May22 776.73648V
Ahlers & Cooney-P.C. Labor Relations 1,700.0061244V
Alden Public Library Library Allocations May22 1,555.70649V
Alliant Energy Hubbard Utility 409.724253V
Angela De La Riva Mileage-CVN 236.00100411
Associates for Psychiatric Services, P.C. Court Report-Eller 285.00101052
Calhoun Burns and Associates Inc 2022 Bridge Rating & Inspections 2,775.805244V
Campbell Supply Co Hand gloves + Credit memo CM-00008100 512.13620V
CenturyLink 2956 Phone Acct-641-648-5056 345.304569V
Cintas-Chicago Shop Towels & Uniforms 240.392475V
City of Ackley Ackley Utility - Acct # 485113001 119.583015V
City of Eldora Library Allocations May22 1,555.70510V
City of Hubbard Hubbard Utility 58.7861554V
City of Iowa Falls Library Allocations May22 1,555.70509V
City of New Providence New Providence Utility 29.78515V
Coleman Moore Co. 520 Bags of Mulch 10,920.0063513V
Galls Incorporated Uniforms 1,304.341389V
GATR Truck Center #158 ABS Valve 1,255.30100679
GECRB/AMAZON Building Maint 2,183.752403V
General Basic Fund Postage Reimburse-Voter Reg. Return Service 9.241270V
Greenbelt Home Care Indigent Care May22 8,706.6561807V
Hardin County Agriculture Society Allocations May22 2,500.00545V
Hardin County Sheriff Allocations May22 9,166.661452V
Hubbard Public Library Library Allocations May22 1,555.70651V
Innovative Ag Services Hubbard VA- Klaffke Tank#674-Buckeye 150.00868V
Interstate Batteries Batteries 801.65880V
Iowa Department of Revenue Permit ID 142010007 Conservation 192.00232V
Iowa Falls Auto Body Vehicle Repair and Maint 500.005068V
Iowa Prison Industries Address signs x5 & reflector strips 364.10809V
Iowa Regional Utilities Assoc.-Newton Buckeye Utility 139.9662036V
ISAC SEAT Training- Kuechenberg 4.13.22 50.00920V
J & T Plumbing & Heating Engineer's Office Sink 238.83100042
Janetta L. Miller-Buck VA-Mileage/Hours  Jan22-Apr22 657.03101053
Jody L Mesch Phone Reimburse 938553867 40.0058E
John Deere Financial Iowa Falls Shop rat traps 85.101394V
Kit Paper Phone Reimburse-April22 40.00100328
Knight Sanitation Sanitation-Tower Rock 47.00993V
Larry Bahr, Landlord VA Rent Reimburse-Burnett 250.00100390
Lori S Kadner Mileage-ICube Training 55.00583E
Mail Services LLC May22 Renewal/Postage 622.0763827V
Marla Kay Williams ME-Roelfs 4.27.22 312.002268V
Martin Marietta Aggregate Granular - Road Stone - Acct #235977 3,527.364141V
McDowell & Sons Contractors, Inc. Sanitation May22 330.0062529V
Mid-America Publishing Corp Publications-Livestock at Large Ordinance 37.3462056V
Murphy Tractor & Equipment Co., Inc #206 Radio 486.122286V
Pitney Bowes Purchase Power MH Meter Rental-5/1-7/31/22 64.0463814V
Quaker Security LLC Courthouse Security 1,290.00100507
Quill Corporation Office Furniture 562.281432V
R Comm LLC Eldora EMS Radio 625.0063277V
Racom Corporation Radio Repair 125.0061030V
Radcliffe Public Library Library Allocations May22 1,555.70653V
Ray O'Herron Co. Inc. Uniforms 146.08100539
Scenic Living Communities Inc. / Scenic Manor VA Remiburse- Rent -M Brown 200.00100941
Sioux Sales Company Uniforms 184.901764V
Steamboat Rock Library Library Allocations May22 1,555.70654V



Vendor Publication Report Payment Date Range: 05/04/2022 - 05/04/2022

5/2/2022 9:11:40 AM Page 2 of 2

Vendor Name Payable Description Total PaymentsVendor Number
Stew Hansen Dodge City Vehicle Purchase 16,913.00101051
Storey Kenworthy Office Supplies 107.9661798V
Summit Food Service LLC Food Service 4,870.312332V
Tanner Lascheid Mileage-ICube 52.50101039
Times Citizen Publications-Vendor Report March 22 475.20538V
Truck Center Companies East LLC #158 Springs 1,314.46100823
U.S. Cellular Phones Acct-400202255 644.4062000V
Union Public Library Library Allocations May22 1,555.70655V
Van Wall Equipment, Inc. #309 light repair - Acct # 892309 -Hubbard VanWall 216.992924V
Verizon Wireless Phones Acct-9904858064 2,535.4263648V
Verlyn Mensing VA Driver-Ashburn/Rash/Klaver/Moravic 560.00100703
Walmart Community/Capital One Supplies-Office/Custodial/Cabins 155.2862446V
Windstream Communications / CABS Phone Acct- 6116IAFLSO 659.4662349V

95,052.89Grand Total:



1215 EDGINGTON AVE., SUITE 1
ELDORA, IA 50627

 (641) 939-8219
SUPERVISORS@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV

HTTP://WWW.HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV

LANCE A. GRANZOW
SUPERVISOR

LGRANZOW@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV

641-939-8221

BJ HOFFMAN

CHAIR

BHOFFMAN@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV

641-939-8220

              RENEE MCCLELLAN
                          SUPERVISOR

RMCCLELLAN@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV

                            641-939-8222

CICS Proclamation

May Mental Health Month 2022
“Back to Basics”

WHEREAS, mental health is essential to everyone’s overall health and well-being; and

WHEREAS, all Americans experience times of difficulty and stress in their lives; and

WHEREAS, prevention is an effective way to reduce the burden of mental health conditions; 
and

WHEREAS, there is a strong body of research that supports specific tools that all Americans can 
use to better handle challenges, and protect their health and well-being; and

WHEREAS, mental health conditions are real and prevalent in our nation; and

WHEREAS, with early and effective treatment, those individuals with mental health conditions 
can recover and lead full, productive lives; and

WHEREAS, each business, school, government agency, healthcare provider, organization and 
citizen shares the burden of mental health problems and has a responsibility to promote 
mental wellness and support prevention efforts.

THEREFORE, we, the  Hardin County Board of Supervisors, do hereby proclaim May 2022 as 
Mental Health Month in Hardin County. We also call upon the citizens, government agencies, 
public and private institutions, businesses, and schools to recommit our communities to 
increasing awareness and understanding of mental health, the steps our citizens can take to 
protect their mental health, and the need for appropriate and accessible services for all people 
with mental health conditions.

Signed this  4th day of May, 2022.

_____________________________________
BJ Hoffman, Chair









STATE OF IOWA 

BEFORE THE IOWA UTILITES BOARD 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

IN RE:       DOCKET NO. HLP-2021-0001 

SUMMIT CARBON SOLUTIONS, LLC 

______________________________________________________________________________  

PETITION TO INTERVENE 

 

COMES NOW the Board of Supervisors for the County of Hardin, State of Iowa, by and 

through the undersigned Hardin County Attorney, pursuant to IAC 199-7.13, and for this Petition 

to Intervene, states: 

1. Hardin County, Iowa, is primarily an agricultural county, with unique natural resources. 

It is also the home of an ethanol plant.  

2. The proposed Summit pipeline will pass through Hardin County, Iowa, intersecting forty 

(40) Hardin County farm-to-market roadways.  

3. The proposed Summit pipeline will pass through several drainage districts in Hardin 

County. See the attached map labeled “Attachment A”.   

4. The proposed Summit pipeline will pass through several waterways in Hardin County, 

including the Iowa River and major contributary waterways, and the adjacent county-

managed wildlife areas, known locally as the “Hardin County Greenbelt”. See the 

attached map labeled “Attachment B”. 

5. The power of a county is vested in its board of supervisors under Iowa Code section 

331.301(2). 

6. The Board of Supervisors of the County of Hardin, State of Iowa, is granted authority 

under Iowa Code section 331.301(1) to “exercise any power and perform any function it 



deems appropriate to protect and preserve the rights, privileges, and property of the 

county or of its residents, and to preserve and improve the peace, safety, health, welfare 

comfort, and convenience of its residents”.  

7. Pursuant to Iowa Code section 486.1, the supervisors of Hardin County, Iowa, “shall 

have jurisdiction, power, and authority” over the drainage districts of Hardin County, 

Iowa, except those that elected to establish private trustees. Iowa Code section 468.186 

provides in part, that when “any person proposes to construct a pipeline . . . on, over, 

across, or beneath the right-of-way of any drainage or levee district, such person shall, 

before beginning construction, obtain from the drainage or levee district an easement to 

cross the district’s right-of-way.” In addition to other provisions under Iowa Code 

Chapter 468, section 468.186(1) expressly vests in the Hardin County Board of 

Supervisors, plenary authority to impose “such additional conditions as they deem 

necessary”.   

8. To obtain an easement to construct a pipeline through drainage districts in Hardin 

County, a person must obtain a construction permit. A copy of the current permit 

requirements is attached hereto as “Attachment C”.  

9. As noted in IAC 199-7.13(4), the consumer advocate’s role is not to be interpreted as 

representing every potential interest in the proceeding. 

10. The aforementioned unique interests and perspectives of Hardin County, Iowa, are better 

protected through intervention by the Hardin County Board of Supervisors. 

11. The Hardin County Board of Supervisors, through the county engineer, drainage clerk 

and drainage engineer, and the county conservation director, also are in a unique position 

to assist in the development of a sound record on issues that arise.  Hardin County also 



has several county commissions, such as its commission on pioneer cemeteries, that 

should be consulted to avoid or mitigate damage to unique features of the county. 

12. Decisions of the Iowa Utility Board regarding the requested permit and eminent domain 

will directly impact the availability and maintenance of Hardin County’s farm-to-market 

roadways, critical drainage district infrastructure, natural resources and the residents of 

Hardin County, Iowa. 

13. Regarding the material allegations asserted in the petition filed by Summit Carbon 

Solutions, LLC, the Hardin County Board of Supervisors states: 

a. Section I of the petition for hazardous liquid pipeline permit (hereinafter “petition”) is 

admitted. 

b. Section II of the petition is admitted only to the extent it is a general description of 

the project related to Hardin County, Iowa. All other claims are denied for lack of 

information. 

c. Section III of the petition is admitted only to the extent it is a general description of 

the project related to Hardin County, Iowa. All other claims are denied for lack of 

information. 

d. Section IV of the petition is admitted only to the extent it is a general description of 

the project related to Hardin County, Iowa. All other claims are denied for lack of 

information. 

e. Section V of the petition is admitted. 

f. Section VI of the petition is admitted only to the extent it is a general description of 

the project related to Hardin County, Iowa. The necessity of, and specific derivative 

benefits to be derived from, the proposed pipeline are denied for lack of information.  



g. Section VII of the petition is admitted only to the extent it is a general description of 

the project related to Hardin County, Iowa.  All other claims are denied for lack of 

information. 

h. Section VIII of the petition is admitted only to the extent it is a general description of 

the project related to Hardin County, Iowa.  All other claims are denied for lack of 

information. 

i. Section IX is not a material fact allegation and therefore is neither admitted nor 

denied. 

j. Section X is a statement of intent, not a material fact allegation, and therefore is 

neither admitted nor denied. Intervenor hereby states that there are local ordinances 

and permits that must be adhered to. 

k. Section XI (request for eminent domain) is resisted as to Hardin County’s interest in 

real property, and as to interests in real property held by residents of Hardin County, 

Iowa. 

l. Section XII is denied for lack of knowledge. 

m. Section XIII is denied for lack of knowledge. Intervenor hereby states that there are 

additional laws and local ordinances and permits that must be adhered to as it relates 

to the project in Hardin County. 

14. If the petition to intervene is granted, the Board of Supervisors reserves the right to 

participate through filing of pleadings and briefs, providing exhibits and potential 

testimony at various stages of the proceedings, as well as the option to provide oral 

argument.  



15. The Hardin County Board of Supervisors approved this petition to intervene by majority 

vote, and have authorized the undersigned member of the Board to execute this petition 

and have authorized the Hardin County Attorney to appear on behalf of the Hardin 

County Board of Supervisors in these proceedings. 

WHEREFORE, the Hardin County Board of Supervisors prays this petition to intervene be 

granted. 

 

      Board of Supervisors, Hardin County, Iowa 

     BY:  _______________________________  

      BJ Hoffman, Board Chair 

 

     /s/ Darrell G. Meyer 

     Hardin County Attorney 

1201 14th Avenue 

Eldora, Iowa 50627 

641-939-8118 

dmeyer@hardincountyia.gov 

     ATTORNEY FOR INTERVENOR  

 

























 

 
HARDIN COUNTY COURTHOUSE 

1215 EDGINGTON AVE. 
ELDORA, IA 50627 

 
 
 

HTTP://WWW.HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV 

   

 

 

HARDIN COUNTY 

Employee Change of Status Report 
 

 

Please enter the following change(s) as of   
 Date 

 

Name:   Department:   

Address:   Position:   

  Salary/Hourly Rate:   
 City State Zip Code  

Fund:   

Status:  Full-time  Permanent Part-time  Temporary/Seasonal Part-time 

Reason of Change: 

 Hired  Resignation 

 Promotion  Retirement 

 Demotion  Layoff 

 Pay Increase  Discharge 

 Leave of Absence   
 Dates 

Other:   

  

  

Dates of Employment:   to   Last Day of Work   
 From To (if applicable) 

Beyond the last day of work, the following vacation time was (or will be paid):   to   
 From To 

Authorized by:     
 Elected Official or Department Head  Date 

Authorized by:     
 Board of Supervisors  Date 

 
 












	Hardin Co intervene petition
	Scan-20220427-161526

	Please enter the following changes as of: 05/16/2022
	Name: Mark Lane Whipple
	Department: Secondary Roads
	Address 1: 231 Mary Street
	Address 2: Geneva
	Address 3: IA
	Address 4: 50633
	Position: Motor Grader Operator
	SalaryHourly Rate: $21.50/hr
	Fund: 20000 - Secondary Road Fund
	Fulltime: On
	Permanent Parttime: Off
	TemporarySeasonal Parttime: Off
	Hired: On
	Promotion: Off
	Demotion: Off
	Pay Increase: Off
	Leave of Absence: Off
	Resignation: Off
	Retirement: Off
	Layoff: Off
	Discharge: Off
	Dates: 
	Other 1: 25 cent per hour raise after 6 month probationary period
	Other 2: 
	Other 3: 
	Dates of Employment: 05/16/2022
	to: 
	Last Day of Work: 
	Beyond the last day of work the following vacation time was or will be paid: 
	to_2: 
	Date: 
	Date_2: 


